November 13, 2018 Westport Town Hall Room 307

WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION
POLICY COMMITTEE
NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING
AGENDA

(Agenda Subject to Modification in Accordance with Law)

WORK SESSION:
9:00 a.m. Westport Town Hall Room 307

DISCUSSION:

1.

Second reading and discussion of the following policy and bylaws:
» P 5142.4 School Resource Officer (Codify, legal citations)

* 9010 Duties of the Board (No change)
* 9012 Role of Board and Board Members (Revised)

+ 9030 Commitment to Democratic Principles in Relation to Community, Staff, Students
(No change)

* 9121, 9122, 9123 Duties of Officers (Revised)

* 9130 Committees (Revised)

« 9210 Terms of the Office/Oath of Office (No/Change)

» 9214 Oath of Office (Revised)

» 9221 Filling Vacancies (Revised)

» 9222 Removal of Officers (New)

» 9250 Reimbursement of Board Member Expenses (New)

» 9270 Conflict of Interest (Revised)

* 9300 Transaction of Business/Methods of Operation (N/C)

* 9311 Formulation, Adoption, Amendment, or Deletion of Policies (Revised)
» 9312 Formulation, Adoption, Amendment, or Deletion of Bylaws (New)

*» 9313 Formulation, Adoption, Amendment, or Deletion of Regulations (New)
» 9314 Suspension of Policies, Bylaws, or Administrative Regulations (New)

» 9320 Meetings (N/C)

» 9321 Time, Place, and Notification of Meetings (Revised)

* 9322 Public and Executive Sessions (New)



Agenda
Page two
November 13, 2018

» 9323 Construction and Posting of Agenda (Revised)

» 9324 Meeting Conduct/Parliamentary Procedures (Revised)
+ 9325.1 Quorum and Voting Procedures (Revised)

» 9325.2 Order of Business (Revised/Deleted)

* 9326 Minutes (New)

« 9326.1 Taping/Recording Board Meetings (Revised)

* 9327 Electronic Mail Communications (Revised)

ADJOURNMENT



P 5142.4

Students

Safety

School Resource Officer

The Board will work in cooperation with the law enforcement agency/police department in the
placement of school resource officers in its high/middle/elementary schools. The objectives and
qualifications of resource officers will be determined by the police department and shall be
subject to approval by the Board.

The Board shall enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the local police
department that defines the officer's role and responsibilities. The MOU must address daily
interactions among students, school personnel, and police officers, and must include a graduated
response model for student discipline.

(cf. 5114 - Suspension/Expulsion; Student Due Process)

(cf. 5131 - Student Conduct)

(cf. 5131.2 - Assault)

(cf. 5131.21 - Terrorist Acts/Threats)

(cf. 5131.4 - School Grounds Disturbances)

(cf. 5131.41 - In-School Disturbances)

(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism)

(cf. 5131.6 - Drugs, Tobacco, Alcohol)

(cf. 5131.61 - Inhalant Abuse)

(cf. 5131.612 - Surrender of Physical Evidenced Obtained from Students)

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

(cf. 5131.8 - Off School Grounds Misconduct)

(cf. 5131.9 - Gang Activity or Association)

(cf. 5141.6 - Crisis Management)



(cf. 5142 - Safety)

(cf. 5144 - Use of Physical Force)

(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension)

(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure)

(cf. 5145.121 - Vehicle Searches on School Grounds)

Legal Reference:

Policy adopted:

Connecticut General Statutes
4-176e through 4-180a. Contested Cases. Notice. Record.
10-220 Duties of boards of education.

10-233a through 10-233f. Suspension, removal and expulsion of students, as
amended by PA 95-304, PA 96-244, and PA 98-139.

53a-3 Definitions.

53a-217b Possession of Firearms and Deadly Weapons on School Grounds.

PA 15-168 An Act Concerning Collaboration Between Boards of Education and
School Resource Officers and the Collection and Reporting of Data on School-
Based Arrests

PA 94-221 An Act Concerning School Discipline and Safety.

GOALS 2000: Educate America Act, Pub. L. 103-227.

18 U.S.C. 921 Definitions.

Title IIT - Amendments to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.
Sec. 314 (Local Control Over Violence)

Elementary and Secondary Act of 1965 as amended by the Gun Free Schools
Act of 1994,

P.L. 105-17 The Individuals with Disabilities Act, Amendment of 1997.

Kyle P. Packer PPA Jane Packer v. Thomaston Board of Education.



P 9010(a)

Bylaws of the Board
Duties of the Board

State statute charges the Board of Education to "maintain good elementary and secondary
schools" and to "give all the children of the town as nearly equal advantages as practical." In
carrying out this duty, the Board is directed to serve the interests of the State as well as those of

the Town.

To assist in determining the interests of the Town, the Board will be receptive to community
opinion on local educational matters. However, the Board cannot delegate to local individuals or
groups its authority for establishing educational policy and its control of the schools.

The Board of Education will base its actions on the welfare of the students. In so doing, it will
endeavor to secure maximum educational benefit for every dollar spent.

The following guidelines will govern the activities of the Board:

L. Board members will never use their position on the Board for personal gain.

2. Board members must understand that their primary responsibility is to establish
policy.

£ The local school district has been created as a unit of the state government. This

means that a local Board is responsible both to the local community and to state
government. The Board of Education member is a state official functioning at a
local level.

4. All Board members will abide by the principle of majority rule.

5 Board members should make no promise of commitments on school questions
unless they are fully discussed and acted upon in the Board meeting.

6. The individual Board member has no authority when the Board is not in session
unless authorized by the Board.

7. The local Board of Education should function independently of other local
government bodies, except as provided by state law and town charter.

8. Board members will recognize that authority rests only with the whole board
assembled in meeting, and will make no personal promises nor take any private
action which may compromise Board.



P 9010(b)

Bylaws of the Board
Duties of the Board (continued)

9. Board members will acknowledge that the Board represents the entire school
community, and a member will refuse to surrender his or her independent judgment
to special interest or partisan political groups.

10.  Board members will respect the confidentiality of executive session.

11.  Board members will arrive at conclusions only after discussing all aspects of the
issue at hand with other board members in meeting. Opinions of Board members
with differing points of view will be respected.

12.  No individual member of the Board, by virtue of holding office, shall exercise any
administrative responsibility with respect to the schools, nor as an individual
command the services of any school employee.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
10-220 Duties of Boards of Education
10-232 Restrictions on employment of members of the Board of Education.

Charter, Town of Westport

C7-2, Powers and Duties

Bylaw adopted by the Board: May 13, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



92012

Bylaws of the Board
Responsibilities and Functions of the Board

By state statute, the Board of Education has “charge of the schools of the town.” The Board is
| specifically empowered to enter into contracts, employ the Superintendent of seheels-Schools
and the school staff, and “prescribe rules for the management, studies, classification and
discipline” of the schools, including the adult education program. For these purposes its
functions may be classified under the headings of finance, plant, staff, community relations,
administration, student welfare, special services, instruction, and program extensions.

In exercising these powers the Board of Education functions as a policy-making and planning
agency, relying on the school staff for the administration and implementation of the policies and
plans. To ensure the Board of competent professional advice and to promote maximum staff
understanding and commitment, the Board will consult fully with the professional staff in these
matters, The Board will also negotiate with duly recognized staff organizations matters
concerning their salaries and other benefits, as required by law.

The Superintendent of Schools is the chief educational advisor, executive advisor and executive

officer of the Board of Education. In all matters coming before the Board it will seek the

Superintendent’s recommendations before reaching decisions. The Board delegates to the

Superintendent the authority to appoint certified staff below the rank of Principal and non-
| certified staff below the rank of Cabinet.

1. General Duties

A. The Board of Education represents the residents of the Town in carrying out the
mandates of the General Statutes pertaining to education.

B. The Board of Education shall determine all questions of general policy to be
employed in the conduct of the schools.

C, In determining school policy it shall:
(D) hear and consider facts and recommendations,
(2)  adopt a plan, policy or course of action, and
(3) authorize the Superintendent of Schools, its chief executive officer, to

carry out its policy.

2. Specific Powers and Duties

The Board of Education shall have authority to take all action necessary or advisable to meet its
responsibilities under state statute and Town Charter including but not limited to the following:

A. Create, abolish, modify and maintain such positions, schools, divisions and
classifications as may be necessary for the efficient administration of the
educational enterprise.




B. To elect a Superintendent of Schools in accordance with state statutes.

C. To consider and adopt an annual budget, prepared by the Superintendent of
Schools.

D. To determine the number, classification, duties and remuneration of employees.

E. To establish policies for employment, promotion and dismissal of personnel in

accordance with the state statutes.
F. To provide for the appraisal of personnel.

G. To initiate and approve the acquisition and disposition of school sites, to initiate
and approve plans for school buildings.

H. To consider any specific recommendations made by the Superintendent of
Schools.
L. To keep the citizenry informed of purposes, values, conditions and needs of public

education in the Town.

1. To consider, revise and adopt any changes in the curriculum.
K. To take any other actions required or permitted by law.
L. To make reasonable provision to implement the educational interests of the State,

as defined by law, so that

(1) each child shall have for the period prescribed in the General Statutes
equal opportunity to receive a suitable program of educational
experiences;

(2) the school district shall finance at a reasonable level an educational
program designed to achieve this end;

(3) the school district shall provide educational opportunities for its students
to interact with students and teachers from other racial, ethnic and
economic backgrounds;

(4)  the mandates in the General Statutes pertaining to education within the
jurisdiction of the State Board of Education shall be implemented.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
1-200  Definitions (public agency)
10-4a  Educational interest of the State identified
10-4b  Failure of local or regional board to implement

educational interests

10-220 Duties of beards-Boards of edueatienEducation
10-221 Boards of education to prescribe rules-
10-241 Powers of school district



Bylaw adopted by the Board: May 13, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
I Revised: Westport, Connecticut



P 9030(a)

Bylaws of the Board

Commitment to Democratic Principles in Relation to Community, Staff, Students

Board-Staff Communications

The Westport Board of Education recognizes the need to maintain open communication between
itself and the staff. Essentially, communications with staff deal with three general areas --
administration, policy and philosophy. While the Board recognizes the necessity for board-staff
communications, it also recognizes that administrative matters must be dealt with through its chief
administrator. Hence, the basic line of communication for administrative matters shall be through
the Superintendent.

1.

Staff Communications to the Board

All formal reports to the Board from administrators, supervisors, teachers or other staff
members shall be submitted through the Superintendent. This necessary procedure shall not
be construed as denying the right of any employee to appeal to the Board from
administrative decisions on important matters, provided that the Superintendent shall have
been notified of the forthcoming appeal and that it is processed in accordance with the
Board's policy on complaints and grievances.

Staff members are also reminded that Board meetings are public meetings. As such, they
provide an excellent opportunity to observe and participate in the Board's deliberations on
problems of staff concern.

Board Communication to Staff

All official communications, policies and directives of staff interest and concern will be
communicated to staff members through the Superintendent, and the Superintendent will
employ all such media as are appropriate to keep staff fully informed of the Board's
problems, concerns and actions.

Visits to Schools

Official visits by Board members will be conducted only under Board authorization and
with the full knowledge of staff, including the Superintendent, building administrators and
other supervisors.



P9030(b)

Bylaws of the Board

Commitment to Democratic Principles in Relation to Community, Staff, Students (continued)

4. Social Interaction

Individual Board members have no special authority excepting when they are convened at a
legal meeting of the Board or vested with special authority by Board action. Board of
Education members are expected, at social affairs and other functions to avoid discussion

of:
A. MatFers that are, or have the potential of becoming, the subject of an executive
session;
B. Information and data contained in personnel records protected by the privacy act;
. Contested issues that may require final resolution by the Board.
Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
10-220 Duties of boards of education.
Bylaw adopted by the Board: August 19, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Westport, Connecticut



P 9121

P 9122
P 9123
Bylaws of the Board
Duties of Officers
OFFICERS
() The Board shall, not later than one month after the date on which newly elected members

take office, elect from its own members a Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, and a Secretary.

v If such officers are not chosen after one month from the date on which newly elected
members take office because of a tie vote of the members, the town council, or, if there is no town
council, the selectmen of the town shall choose such officers from the membership of the board.

3 Officers shall hold their respective offices for one year, and until their successors are duly
elected.
4. Should a vacancy arise in an office of the Board during the term of a Board officer’s

service, the members of the Board (including, if applicable, the member vacating a Board office)
shall elect a successor to fill the office until the next regular election for Board officers.

5. The votes of each member cast in such election shall be reduced to writing and made
available for public inspection within forty-eight hours, excluding Saturday, Sunday, or legal
holidays, and shall also be recorded in the minutes of such meeting at which taken, which minutes
shall be available for inspection at all reasonable times.

The-Chairperson-wit: OFFICIAL DUTIES - CHAIRPERSON

1; Confer with the Superintendent in the preparation of agendas for meetings.

2 Preside at all meetings at which he or she is present.

3. The Chairperson shall appoint the chair and members of all special committees.

4. The Chairperson shall serve as ex officio member on all committees.

5. Serve as chief spokesperson for the Board when it appears on official business
before other town Boards and commissions and the Representative Town
Meeting.

46.  Call special meetings of the Board when he/she deems it necessary or as requested

in writing to do so by three of its members.
57. Sign legal documents as authorized by the Board.

8. The Chairperson shall act as the Board’s representative for the purposes of



consultation with Board legal counsel when appropriate, and may authorize other
Board members to consult with Board counsel when appropriate.

9. The Chairperson shall perform such other duties as may be delegated to him/her
by the Board.

610. In all other respects have the same powers and duties as other members.

OFFICIAL DUTIES - VICE CHAIRPERSON

In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall assume and carry out the duties and
respon31b111t1es of the Chalrpel son.

absenee—In the event of the Chairperson's remgnatlon from the Board, the Vice-Chairperson wﬂl
become the acting Chairperson and serve in that capacity until the Board is reconstituted and a
new Chairperson has been elected.

OFFICIAL DUTIES - SECRETARY

1. The Secretary of the Board shall, With-with the assistance of a staff member appointed by
the Superintendent, keep minutes or cause minutes to be kept of all meetings of the
Board, and shall cause coples of such mmutes to be forwarded to each member of the

o In accordance with the General Statutes, the Board Secretary shall cause a copy of the
minutes of all Board meetings to be placed on file in the Board Office and posted on the
Board’s website, if available, no later than seven (7) days after the date on which the
Board shall have met. Such minutes will be available for public inspection, except that
such minutes will not be termed "official minutes" until approved by the Board of
Education at a duly convened meeting of the Board.

3 The Board Secretary shall also make provision that members of the Board are notified of
all regular and special meetings.

4. The Board Secretary shall attend to the official correspondence of the Board.
-3 The Board Secretary shall submit to the Town an annual report of the doings of the
Board.

Legal Reference:
Connecticut General Statutes
10-218  Officers. Meetings.
1 QQQ—]—S-&IBF}‘@S E)PS@G{ etal & &fl‘d_&t:tef' 1&-&5@9— B—tﬁeei-s-‘ T
1294 Duties of secretary.
1-225 Meetings of government agencies to be public. Recording of votes. Schedule
and agenda of meetings to be filed. Notice of special meetings. Executive



sessions.
7-3 Warning of Town and other meetings
7-4 Record of warning
10-224  Duties of the Secretary
10-225  Salaries of Secretary and attendance officers

Bylaw adopted by the Board: June 10, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
| Revised: Westport, Connecticut



Bylaws of the Board

Committees

[Note:

9130

COMMITTEES

The Board shall act as a committee of the whole on all matters coming before it except
that special committees for the consideration or investigation of certain problems, or for
the performance of certain Board functions, may be created by vote of the Board.

A. Such special committees shall submit their reports at such regular meetings of the
Board as may be determined, and when such reports have been submitted and
accepted by the Board, shall be discharged.

B. All special committee reports affecting Board policy shall be submitted in writing.

& A special committee’s only authority is to make recommendations to the Board
regarding matters that that have been referred to it, unless the Board specifically
authorizes otherwise.

Meetings of committees shall be posted in accordance with the Freedom of Information
Act. A record shall be maintained by the chairperson of each committee of each meeting,
which shall include the names of committee members in attendance, listing of topics
discussed and committee recommendations.

The Superintendent shall notify all Board members of committee meetings.

A. The Executive Committee shall meet with the Superintendent as requested
by the Superintendent or as directed by the Chairperson to review matters
related to administrative, personnel, pupil personnel, issues and general
matters not requiring action of the Board as a whole.

B. Other responsibilities of the Executive Committee include:
(1) Long-Range agenda planning

(2) Facilitating communication between the Superintendent and Board
members. |

Although neither an Executive Committee nor the position of Vice Chairperson are
required by statute, some boards may wish to include the optional provision for an
Executive Committee as part of its Committee Policy. Also, if a board has a Vice
Chairperson, that person is logically included on the Executive Committee. |



Legal Reference
Conn. Gen. Stat, § 10-218

ADOPTED:
REVISED:

12/23/04

Bylaw adopted by the Board:

Officers. Meetings.

June 10, 2002

WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



P 9210

Bylaws of the Board
Terms of the Office
Each member serves a term of four years.
The term commences the first Tuesday after the third Monday in the November of their election,
and continues until a successor has been elected and qualified. Four members and then three
members alternately shall be elected at each regular Town election, which will be held on the
first Tuesday after the first Monday in November in each odd numbered year.
Reference:  Charter, Town of Westport

C7-1, Composition and election.

C2-1, Eligibility.

C2-2, Minority representation.

C2-3, Town elections and terms of office.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: May 13, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



P 9214

Bylaws of the Board

Oath of Office
Elected Board of Education members shall, before entering upon their official duties, take the

oath of office provided in Connecticut General Statutes Section 1-25 and be sworn in by the
Town Clerk.

Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes
10-218a  Qath of Office

Bylaw adopted by the Board: WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



P 9221

Bylaws of the Board

Filling Vacancies

A vacancy is filled by appointment by the remaining Board members. Any member so appointed
serves until the expiration of the term of the seat that has been vacated. If the person vacating a

position was elected as a member of a political party, such vacancy is filled from the membership
of the same political party.

If such vacancy has not been filled by appointment of the remaining Board members within 36
45 days after the occurrence of the vacancy, the Board of Selectman or First Selectman may
appoint a qualified person to fill the vacancy until the expiration of the term of the seat that has

been vacatedrext-munietpal-eleetion.

Legal Refercnce:

Connecticut General Statutes

7-107 Vacancy appointments by selectmen.

9-204 Minority representation on boards of education.
10-219 Procedure for filling vacancy on board of education.

10-156e Employees of boards of education permitted to serve as elected
officials; exception.

10-232 Restriction on employment of members of the board of education.
Charter Town of Westport.

C2-1, Eligibility.

C2-2, Minority representation on boards of commissions.

C40-3, Vacancies.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: May 13, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Westport, Connecticut

August 2, 2018 Page 161



§2 D322

Resignation/Removal of Board Officers/ Recall/Resignation
Resignation

A.

If a member decides to terminate service, the Board requests as early as possible notification
of intent to resign so that the Board may plan appropriately.

B. When a member of a Board of Education shall cease to be an elector of the town

G

membership in the Board shall immediately cease.

State law provides that municipal officers seeking to resign from office must submit a
written resignation to the municipal clerk. The resignation takes effect upon the date
specified in the resignation or, if no date is specified, upon the date of its submission to the
clerk. It is the policy of the Westport Board of Education that an officer of the Board will:

1. adhere to all Board policies, rules and regulations;
2. conduct himself or herself in a fair and impartial manner; and
3. carry out the duties of his or her respective office in accordance with law.

| Removal of Board Officers from Office

An officer of the Board may be removed for cause by a majority vote of the entire Board. A vote
to remove a Board officer shall only take place at a regular meeting or a special meeting called
for that purpose. “Cause” includes, but is not limited to, any conduct that:

1. specifically relates to and affects the administration of the office in a manner
deemed to be deleterious to Board operations;

2. negatively and directly affects the rights and interests of the public;

3. violates Board policies, rules and regulations; or

4. conduct that interferes with the orderly and efficient operation of the Board.

Procedures for Removal of Board Officers:

| Prior to any vote to remove a Board officer for cause:

1.) The Board may review the performance and/or conduct of the Board officer in

open or executive session (as determined by the Board and the Board officer) prior to
taking any formal action;

2.) If the Board determines that formal action is necessary, the Board officer shall be
provided with reasonable notice of the Board’s intent to consider possible removal from
office (such notice to be given in writing after being authorized by Board vote at a prior
meeting of the Board).

3.3 Upon the written request of the Board officer within seven days of such action,
he/she shall be provided with an opportunity for a hearing before the Board of Education
before the Board votes on removal;



4.) At any such hearing, the Board officer shall have the right to be represented by
counsel at his/her own expense and to present relevant evidence to the Board.

Procedures for Recall:

Board members may be removed from office for reasons listed in the Town Charter.

Standard for Removal

Service as a Board officer is a privilege, not a right, the purpose of which is to assist the Board in
conducting its business in an appropriate, orderly and efficient manner. Therefore, any Board
member serving as an officer shall have no legally-protected right to continue in that position. A
decision that there is cause for removal shall be made by a majority of board members present
and voting, provided that no less than a majority of the board membership as a whole shall be
required for removal.

Legal References:

Connecticut General Statutes

10-218 Officers. Meetings.

10-220 Duties of boards of education.

Lapointe v. Winchester Board of Education, CV0400932578S, 2004 Conn. Super.

LEXIS 2574 (Sept. 14, 2004).
Bylaw adopted by the Board WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS Westport, Connecticut



9250

Reimbursement of Board Members’ Expenses
1. Remuneration
A. A member of the Westport Board of Education shall receive no compensation for
carrying out Board services.

| 2. Reimbursement

A. Board members authorized to attend educational conferences, meetings or travel on
Board business shall be reimbursed, upon submitting vouchers and supporting
documentation for reasonable expenditures, transportation costs, and registration fees.
Board members must have approval in advance from the Board Chair and the Board
Chair from another officer to be eligible for a reimbursement.

B. Each Board member that receives prior authorization for reimbursement of a

Board of Education expense is expected to account for all expenditures incurred in
connection with the performance of his/her Board duties.

C. Receipts in general are required for:
(1) Lodging -- Lodging accommodations should provide normal comforts and
services well located in relation to the area in which Board business will be conducted.

(2) Meals --Reasonable expenditures are allowed for meals. Board members may submit
appropriate explanatory information as needed, on a separate sheet of paper attached to the
receipt. The Board will not reimburse Board members for the purchase of alcohol.

(3) TransportationCar-erBusFare

(4) Parking Fees or Toll Charges (when applicable)

(5) RegistrationFees—The-Board-will-not-pay-any late registration-fees
itheut-an-explie T Szation-

Legal Reference

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-225 Salaries of secretary and attendance officers

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-232 Restrictions on employment of members of board of education
Bylaw adopted by the Board WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS Westport, Connecticut



P 9270

Bylaws of the Board
Conflict of Interest

In the course of carrying out its responsibilities, the Board of Education does business with a
large number of individuals and groups, purchasing, renting or leasing a variety of goods and
services. In order to avoid financial conflict of interest or the appearance of conflict of interest,
the Board of Education will avoid doing business with Board members or Board employees.

It shall be a conflict of interest for a Board member or employee to engage in any business
transaction with the Board of Education unless disclosure of any material financial interest is
made to the Superintendent and the Board of Education. Any financially interested Board
member or employee shall not take part in any action to authorize or approve the contract.

Further Stipulations

A. A material financial interest shall be considered to be an interest of 5% or more in
the company wishing to do business with the Board, or a contract to receive
remuneration to effect the transaction.

B. Disclosure of material financial interest will be made publicly.

Gifts

All members and employees of the Board of Education are prohibited from accepting gifts other
than of minimal value as defined by current IRS regulations from any person(s) doing or
planning to do business with the school system.

This policy should not be construed so as to prohibit an employee or member of the Board of
Education who is a candidate for any office (including re-election to the Board of Education)
from receiving campaign contributions that he or she would otherwise be legally entitled to
accept.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
7-479 Conflict of interest (municipal employees).
10-156e Employees of boards of education permitted to serve as elected
officials; exception.
10-232 Restrictions on employment of members of the board of education.

Bylaw adopted by the Board May 13, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



P 9300

Bylaws of the Board

Methods of Operation

The Westport Board of Education shall concern itself only with broad questions of policy and not
with administrative details. The Board shall rely upon the Superintendent of Schools to recommend
policies for adoption and to administer policies enacted by the Board. Such policies shall be broad
enough to indicate a line of action to be taken by the Superintendent in meeting a number of
problems and jobs. Application of such policies to individual problems and jobs is an
administrative function to be performed by the Superintendent.

Bylaws adopted by the Board: August 19, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



9311

Formulation,-Adoption, Amendment, or Deletion of Policies

In exercising its authority and responsibility for control of the schools the Board of Education
acts primarily through establishment of school policies. The Board views policies as guides to
discretionary action, which should be as broad as possible but as specific as necessary to ensure
fulfillment of its intent. Such policies will normally state the purposes of the Board in adopting
them and indicate the essential criteria and procedures to be used by the school staff in

implementing them.

The policies of the Westport schools will be formulated on two levels. Board policies will state
the requirements to be met by the Board and the school staff in the conduct of school affairs.
Administrative regulations will state the requirements to be met by staff and students in
executing Board policies and in the day-to-day conduct of school activities.

Where public or staff concern indicates the need, school policies will be formally developed,
committed to writing, adopted and incorporated in the official policy handbook maintained by
the Superintendent of Schools.

Policy suggestions may originate with the Board of Education or with any individual or group.
Such proposals will normally be referred to the Superintendent for consideration, possible
development in written form, review by appropriate school personnel, and referral to the Board.

In accordance with state law, policies to be incorporated in contractual agreements with groups
of staff personnel will be developed through established negotiation procedures before referral to
the Board for action. Contractual agreements in conflict with existing policy will be considered
to supersede that policy.

Reference: Robert’s Rules of Order
1. In the absence of any written policy, administrative regulations will be used to guide and
administer the effective operation of the school district.
2. Suggestions for either new policies or policy changes would normally come to the Board
of Education from any of the following:

A. Board of Education Members

B. Superintendent

C. Statute

D. Matters of law

E. Citizens

F. Students.

G. Policy Committee



3. The Superintendent will prepare a draft policy statement for consideration and for the
development by the Board of Education.
4. Policy proposals and suggested amendments to, revisions of, or deletions of existing

policies shall normally be submitted to all members of the Board of Education by the
Superintendent in writing prior to a regular Board of Education meeting in which such proposed
policies, amendments, revisions or deletions thereof shall be read and discussed.

5. Policies that deal with matters of an emergency nature may be introduced at any regular
or special Board meeting.

6. Policies that affect students shall become effective at the beginning of the next school
year following adoption unless the policy provides otherwise, or unless provided by law.
7. Except for emergency situations, policies will be adopted, amended, or deleted after

consideration at two regular meetings of the Board of Education. The agenda shall be marked to
indicate such policy matters.

8. When a policy is placed on the agenda for the second consecutive meeting, a motion

either to adopt or not to adopt the policy or the proposed policy changes is necessary for
discussion. If the discussion results in a suggestion for change, such changes will be included in
the second reading of the policy prior to adoption.

9. The formal adoption or deletion of policies and the adoption of policy changes shall be by
majority vote of all members of the Board, and the action shall be recorded in the minutes of the

Board.

10. Only those written statements so adopted as policy and so recorded shall be regarded as
official policy of the Board.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: June 10, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS

Revised: Westport, Connecticut

Effective:



9312

Formulation, Adoption, Amendment, or Deletion of Bylaws

Bylaw proposals and suggested amendments to, revisions of, or deletions of existing bylaws
shall normally be submitted to all members of the Board of Education by the Superintendent in
writing prior to a regular Board of Education meeting in which such proposed bylaws,
amendments, revisions or deletions thereof shall be read and discussed.

Except for emergency situations, bylaws will be adopted, amended, or deleted after consideration
at two regular meetings of the Board of Education. The agenda shall be marked to indicate such
matters,

When a bylaw is placed on the agenda for the second consecutive meeting, a motion either to
adopt or not to adopt the policy or the proposed bylaw changes is necessary for discussion. If the
discussion results in a suggestion for change, such changes will be included in the second
reading of the bylaw prior to adoption.

Any bylaw of the Board may be adopted, amended or deleted at any regular meeting by a
majority vote of all members of the Board, provided that such proposal shall have been given to
the Board at the previous regular meeting,

Bylaw adopted by the Board: WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS, Westport,
Connecticut

Effective:




9313

Formulation, Adoption, Amendment, or Deletion of Administrative Regulations

The Board of Education does not adopt administrative regulations unless specifically required to
do so by law, or unless requested to do so by the Superintendent. Adoption and amendment of
such Board of Education adopted regulations shall be by the same procedure as that specified for

policies in 9311.

The Superintendent is responsible for the formulation, issuance, amendment and deletion of
administrative regulations to implement the policies of the Board. The Superintendent shall
determine the need to bring to the attention of the Board any new, revised or deleted
administrative regulations.

The Board of Education reserves the right to review and direct revisions of administrative
regulations. If the Board directs the Superintendent to issue, amend or delete administrative
regulations, it shall do so upon majority vote of all members in attendance at a meeting provided
that prior notification of such proposed revision has been described in writing in the call of the
meeting, or upon majority vote of all members of the Board when no such written notice has
been given.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS Westport,
Connecticut

Effective:




9314

Suspension of Policies, Bylaws, or Administrative Regulations
1. Policies and bylaws of the Board shall be subject to suspension for a specified purpose
and limited time by:
A. A majority vote of all members of the Board in attendance at a meeting, and
B. Provided that prior notification of such a proposed suspension has been described

in writing in the call of the meeting.

2. Policies of the Board of Education shall be subject to suspension for a specified purpose and
limited time upon a majority vote of all members of the Board when no such written notice has
been given.

3. Bylaws of the Board of Education shall be subject to suspension for a specified purpose

and limited time upon a two-thirds votes of all members of the Board when no such written
notice has been given.

4. Administrative regulations of the Board may be suspended for a specified purpose and

limited time:

A By the Superintendent, who shall give notice to the Board of the reason for the
suspension and the time period of the suspension.

B. The Board may direct the Superintendent to suspend administrative regulations

for a specified purpose and limited time upon majority vote of all members in attendance at a
meeting, provided that prior notification of such proposed suspension has been described in
writing in the call of the meeting, or upon majority vote of all members of the Board when no
such written notice has been given.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS Westport,
Connecticut

Effective:



P 9320

Bylaws of the Board

Meetings

Organizational Meeting

Not later than one month after the date on which the newly elected members take office, the
Board elects from its number, by public vote, (which is to be recorded in the minutes) a
Chairperson, Vice Chair and a Secretary. If such officers are not chosen after one month because

of a tie vote of the members, the Selectman chooses such officers from the membership of the
Board.

Thereafter, new officers will be elected annually in December.
Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

10-218 Officers. Meetings.

Charter, Town of Westport

C40-3 Vacancies.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: May 13, 2002 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Westport, Connecticut



9321
TIME, PLACE AND NOTICE OF MEETINGS

1. Regular Meetings

A. The Board of Education shall set a calendar of regular meetings for the
ensuing year at the first regular meeting in November.

B. In compliance with the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut, the Chairperson
[or Secretary] shall file this calendar with the Town Clerk, and post this calendar on the
Board’s website, if available, by November 30 [or other date falling on or before January
31].

C. Generally the Board shall schedule meetings two times per month on Mondays during
the school year. Meetings will be held in the evening or on Saturday unless the majority
of members present vote otherwise. Notice of each regular meeting and agenda shall be
published at least 3 days before each regular meeting in a newspaper having substantial
circulation in the Town.” (Town Charter)

D. If at any point in the meeting the Board of Education should not maintain

a quorum, then the Chairperson of the Board will adjourn the meeting and declare the
time and place of the resumption of the meeting, which shall be reflected in a written
order of adjournment. A copy of the written order of adjournment will be posted on or
near the door of the place where the meeting was held within twenty-four hours after the
time of adjournment.

2. Special Meetings

A. Special meetings may be held when determined by the Board, when so
called by the Chairperson, or upon written request of three members of the Board.
B. No special meeting shall be held unless a notice stating the time, place and

purpose of the meeting has been given to each member and to the Town Clerk, and has
been posted on the Board’s website, if available, twenty- four (24) hours before the time
stated for the meeting to convene.

C. When a majority of the members agree that an emergency exists which has

made a regular notice impossible, such a meeting may be called at a time or place which
may be most convenient. In case of such emergency meeting, a copy of the minutes
setting forth the nature of the emergency



and the proceedings occurring at such meeting shall be filed with the Town Clerk no later
than seventy-two (72) hours following the holding of such a meeting.

3. Meeting Time and Place

A. Most regular meetings of the Board shall begin at 7:30pm or as soon
thereafter as a quorum is present. All regular meetings of the Board shall be held in
Staples Cafeteria B , unless otherwise ordered by the Board.

B. Special Meetings (non-emergency) - time and place to be determined and
announced in advance of meeting.

Legal References:

Connecticut General Statutes

1-225 Meetings of government agencies to be public. Recording of votes. Schedule of agenda of
meetings to be filed. Notice of special meetings Executive session.

1-228 Adjournment of meetings.

Notice. 1-229 Continued hearings.

Notice. 1-230 Regular meetings to be held pursuant to regulation, ordinance or resolution.
7-3 Warning of Town and other meetings.

7-4 Record of warning.

10-218 Officers. Meetings.

ADOPTED:

REVISED:







9322
PUBLIC MEETINGS AND EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. Public Meetings

A. All meetings of the Board of Education for the official transaction of business shall be
open to the public except that the Board may, by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the
members present and voting, meet in executive session for the purposes specified in Conn.
Gen. Stat. §1-225.

B. As defined by statute, the term "meeting" shall not include: any meeting of a personnel
search committee for executive level employment candidates; any chance meeting, or a social
meeting neither planned nor intended for the purpose of discussing matters relating to official
business; strategy or negotiations with respect to collective bargaining; a caucus of members
of a single political party notwithstanding that such members also constitute a quorum of a
public agency; an administrative or staff meeting of a single-member public agency; and
communication limited to notice of meetings of any public agency or the agendas thereof. The
term "caucus" means a convening or assembly of the enrolled members of a single political
party who are members of a public agency within the state or a political subdivision.

2. Executive Sessions

A. The public may be excluded from meetings of the Board of Education

which are declared to be executive sessions.
B. Executive sessions may be held on a two-thirds vote of the members

present and voting taken at a public meeting stating the reasons for such executive session.
Executive sessions may be held for any reasons permissible under the provisions of the
Freedom of Information Act, as it may be amended from time to time, including one or more
of the following purposes:

(1) Discussion concerning the appointment, employment, performance, evaluation, health
or dismissal of a public officer or employee, provided that such individual may require
that discussion be held at an open (public) meeting.

(2) Strategy and negotiations with respect to pending claims and litigation to which the
Board or a member of the Board, because of his or her conduct as a member of the Board,
is a party until such claims or litigation have been finally adjudicated or otherwise settled.

(3) Matters concerning security strategy or the deployment of security personnel, or
devices affecting public security.

4) Discussion of the selection of a site or the lease, sale or purchase of real estate when
publicity regarding such site, lease, sale, purchase or construction would cause a
likelihood of increased price until such time as all of the property has been acquired or all
proceedings or transactions concerning same have been terminated or abandoned.



(5) Discussion of any matter which would result in the disclosure of

public records or the information contained therein described in Conn. Gen. Stat. §1-
210(b).

Legal References:

Connecticut General Statutes

1-200 Definitions (Public Agency; Meetings; Person; Public Record; Executive Session)
1-210 Access to public record. Exempt records.

1-225 Meetings of government agencies to be public.

Recording of votes. Schedule and agenda of meetings to be filed. Notice of special meetings.
Executive sessions.

1-231 Executive sessions.

ADOPTED:
REVISED:




9324 9323
CONSTRUCTION AND POSTING OF AGENDA
1. Construction of Agenda
A. The Superintendent in cooperation with the Chairperson of the Board of
Education shall prepare an agenda for each meeting.

B. In addition to those items listed by the Chairperson of the Board, any member of the
Board may contact the Chairperson or the Superintendent and request that an item be
placed on the agenda.

1) This request must be made no later than seventy-two (72) hours prior
to the legally required public posting of the agenda.|

2) At least a majority of Board members present must agree to the additional
agenda item before it will be placed on the agenda.]

C. Town residents and/or taxpayers may request that the Board place an item
on the agenda of a regular meeting. To do so they must:
1) Make their request in writing to the Secretary of the Board, with a
copy of the request to the Superintendent of Schools and Chair of the Board.
2) The Secretary of the Board will present the written request to the
Board at its next regular meeting.

3) If at least a majority of the Board of Education members agree to the additional
agenda item, it will be placed on an agenda for a future regular meeting of the
Board of Education

4) The Board of Education will decide at which future regular meeting
date the item will appear on the agenda.]

2. Posting of Agenda

A. At least twenty-four{24)-houssthree days prior to the time of the regular [or special]

meeting, an agenda will be constructed and posted by the Superintendent of Schools for the
Board of Education.

B. An agenda will be posted at Town Hall within seven days.and}-the-Administrative-Offices-of
the

C. The Board may add items to the agenda of any regular meeting by a two-thirds

vote of those Board Members present and voting.



Legal Reference:
Connecticut General Statutes
1-225 Meetings of government agencies to be public.

Recording of votes. Schedule and agenda of meetings to be filed. Notice of special meetings.
Executive sessions.

ADOPTED:
REVISED:

EFFECTIVE:




9324

MEETING CONDUCT
1. Meeting Conduct

A. Meetings of the Board of Education shall be conducted by the Chairperson in a
manner consistent with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act and the
adopted bylaws of the Board.

B. All Board meetings shall commence at, or as close as practicable to, the stated
time, provided there is a quorum.

c. All regular and special Board meetings shall be guided by an agenda which will
have been prepared and delivered in advance to all Board members and other
designated persons.

D. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the proceedings of the Board except as
otherwise provided by these bylaws.

2, Smoking

A. Smoking will not be permitted in any room in which a meeting of the Board of
Education is being conducted, nor during the time immediately prior to the
meeting.

B. A sign notifying the public that no smoking is allowed in the place designated for
the meeting will be prominently posted.

. Procedures for SESISEMSINE Participation By Means of Electronic Equipment

A.

Board members may participate in meetings SIS BRGIISMRDyY means of electronic
equipment (e.g., telephone, video conference) under the conditions set forth

herein. When such conditions are met, any Board member participating

_bx means of electronic equipment shall be counted for the purpose

of constituting a quorum. Conditions for participation are as follows:

L The facility that is made available to the public that wishes to attend the
meeting must be located where the greatest number of Board of Education
members are located;



2. Any physical or demonstrable material that is used in the course of the
proceedings must be present in the place where the public is located; and

i ¥ All those in attendance at the meeting, at whatever location, must be able
to hear and identify all participants in the proceeding, including their
individual remarks and votes.

B. When a Board member is participating in a meeting [l EGEISEgbY means of

electronic equipment, the Chairperson shall take the necessary steps to ensure that
the three conditions enumerated above are met. In addition, the Chairperson shall

take the necessary steps to ensure that a Board member participating

_bx means of electronic equipment has adequate opportunity to

express himself/herself in Board discussion, including the opportunity to take the
floor and make motions.

4. Public Address

A. The Board may permit any individual or group to address the Board concerning
any subject that lies within its jurisdiction during a portion of the Board's regular
meetings so designated for such purpose.

(1) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of
minutes to each subject matter. The Board may modify these
limitations at the beginning of a meeting if the number of persons wishing
to speak makes it advisable to do so.

(2) A Board of Education member shall be appointed by the Chairperson prior
to the meeting to act as timekeeper for the meeting, if deemed necessary

by the Chairperson.
(3)  No boisterous conduct shall be permitted at any Board of Education
meeting. Persistence in boisterous conduct shall be grounds for summary

termination, by the Chairperson, of that person's privilege of address.

4) All speakers must identify themselves by name and address.

Legal References:

Connecticut General Statutes
1-200 Definitions



1-206 Denial of access of public records or meeting. Notice. Appeal.
1-225 Meetings of government agencies to be public.
1-232 Conduct of meetings. (re: disturbances)

Freedom of Information Commission Advisory Opinion #41 (April 9, 1980)

ADOPTED:
REVISED:







9325.1
QUORUM AND VOTING PROCEDURES

1. Quorum:
A. The majority of all members of the Board shall be necessary to constitute
a quorum for the transaction of business.

2. Voting Procedures:
A. No member can vote on a question in which he/she has a direct personal or
pecuniary interest.
B. Members may vote for themselves for any office or other position.
C. While it is the duty of every member who has an opinion on a question to
express it by vote, he/she cannot be compelled to do so.
D. A member may abstain from voting (with the knowledge that the effect is
the same as if he/she had voted on the prevailing side).
E. The votes of each member of the Board upon any issue before the Board
shall be recorded in the minutes of the session at which taken.
F. Any Board member shall have the opportunity to explain his/her vote for
recording in the minutes.

ADOPTED:

REVISED:

EFFECTIVE:







9326

MINUTES
1. In compliance with legal requirements, a complete and accurate set of minutes of

each meeting shall be kept.
2. Minutes shall be maintained at the Administrative Offices of the school district in
an official record book designated for said purpose.

3. The minutes shall constitute the official records of proceedings of the Board of Education and
shall be open to public inspection at all reasonable times.
4. The minutes shall include the following:

A. The time, place and date of each meeting.
B. The names of those members in attendance.
C. The disposition of all matters on which action was recommended.
D. All motions and resolutions and their disposition, listing all votes, abstentions and
absentees.
E. All decisions concerning future meetings and agendas.
F. By request, a brief statement of a Board member may be included.
5. A record of votes taken at each meeting shall be reduced to writing and made

available for public inspection within forty-eight hours of the conclusion of the meeting at which
the votes were taken. Votes taken shall also be reflected in the minutes of each meeting, and the
draft minutes shall be made available for public inspection and posted on the Board’s website, if
available, not later than seven days of the date of the meeting to which they refer, however, the
Board shall not be required by law to post such minutes on an Internet website. Should the Board
decide to make minutes available on the Board’s website, it shall do so at the sole discretion of

the Board.
Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes



9326.1

Taping/Recording Board Meetings

1. Board of Education public meetings shal-may be recorded.
2. The recordings shall be retained for one year.

3. The recordings are not to be considered part of the minutes.
Recording Devices

1. Broadcasting and recordings of meetings are permitted and electronic and photographic audio
and video devices may be used at meetings of the Board of Education according to the following

guidelines:

2. Persons operating recording devices are asked not to

a. Obstruct the view between members of the audience and the Board of Education,
b. Disrupt the proceedings by holding interviews,

c. Provide commentary in a manner that distracts Board members.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: June 10, 2002



9327
Board

Meetings
Electronic Mail Communications

The Board of Education believes that Board members electronically connected to other Board
members is an efficient and convenient way to communicate. The main goal of electronic mail
fe-matbhcommunications is to expedite the exchange of information. E-mailElectronic
communication gives Board members quick access to one another.

Guidelines for Board E-Mail UsageElectronic Communications

The Freedom of Information Act mandates that all meetings of public bodies such as School
Boards be open to the public and that records received and/or retained by public agencies be
available to the public for inspection and copying. It is the policy of the Board of Education that
the rules governing use of district e-matlelectronic communications be clarified and that such e-
matlelectronic communications shall not be used in a manner to deprive the public of its rights
under the Freedom of Information Act. Accordingly, this bylaw sets forth guidelines for e-
matlelectronic communications use by Board members when communicating with other Board
members on the district e-mail account provided for their convenience or other methods, whether
supplied by the district or not.

1. E-maiElectronic communications, like other written forms of communication relating to
the conduct of the public business is subject to the Freedom of Information Act and may be
subject to public disclosure.

2. Board members shall not use e-maitelectronic communications as a substitute for
deliberations at public Board meetings, and/or to vote informally on any issues.

3. As is true with all e-mail-systemselectronic communications, the systems' administrators
could, under unusual circumstances, read the content of e-mail-messages-communications
and/or override passwords. Therefore, Board members should not presume privacy or
security in any e-matelectronic communications made on the district account

members. Board members shall not reveal their passwords to others in the network or to
anyone outside of it. If any Board member has reason to believe that a password has been lost
or stolen, or that e-mailiscommunications are being accessed by someone without
authorization, he/she shall notify the Superintendent.

4. Board members should exercise discretion in discussing personnel issues and other
sensitive subjects through e-mailelectronic communications. The confidentiality of
employee data, pupil data, and other information privileged under law should be maintained.



Any use of district e-mailcommunications contrary to the guidelines set out above shall be
reported immediately to the Superintendent.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

The Freedom of Information Act.

1-18a Definitions.

1-19 Access to public records. Exempt records.

1-19a Disclosure of computer-stored public records.

Policy adopted: August 19, 2002



